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VERIFIED COMPLAINT

Complainant SHIPCO TRANSPORT INC (Shipco) by its attorneys. Rodriguez
O’'Donnell. Gonzalez and Williams. P.C., as and for its Verified Complaint against
Respondents, JEM LOGISTICS. INC.(Jem Logistics) and ANDI GEORGESCU, an
individual doing business as JEM LOGISTICS. INC. pursuant to these sections of the
Shipping Act of 1984. as amended by the Occan Shipping Reform Act of 1998 (the
“Shipping Act™). 46 U.S.C. §§41102. 41305. 40901. 40902, and 40102 (19), and pursuant
to the Federal Maritime Commission’s authority under Section 11(a) of the Act. 46

U.S.C. §41301.



PARTIES

1. Plaintiff, Shipco, is a non-vessel operating common carrier (NVOCC) licensed
by the Federal Maritime Commission and is a corporation, incorporated in the State of
New Jersey with its principal place of business at 80 Washington Street, Hoboken, New
Jersey 07080.

2. Respondent, Andi Georgescu, is a resident of the State of California, who is
the principal owner and president of Jem Logistics and does business under that name.
with the principal place of business at 717 E. Gardena Blvd,. Gardena, CA 90248.
Respondent Jem Logistics. Inc. is a corporation incorporated in the State of California.
with headquarters at 717 E. Gardena Blvd., Gardena, California 90248. Respondent
Georgescu at all times herein mentioned dominated this corporation, and distorted its
name with a false name, Aromark Shipping LLC. in order to defraud a third party, Shipco
Transport Inc.

3. Jem Logistics misrepresented to Shipco at the times mentioned herein,
including from on or about January 5. 2010 through May 14. 2010 and continuing that it
was. In fact. an FMC licensed NVOCC But. Jem Logistics was not the NVOCC it
purported to be. and is not now nor was it at any time herein mentioned licensed by the
Federal Maritime Commission (FMC) nor did it possess a bonded OTI pursuant to the
Regulations of the Federal Maritime Commission and provisions of* the Shipping Act. 46

U.S.C. §§ 40901-40902.

FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS



4. On or about January 5, 2010 through and including May 14, 2010, and
afterward, Respondents Georgescu and Jem Logistics falsely used the name of a licensed
and bonded NVOCC, Aromark Shipping LLC (Aromark), an LLC with it’s principal
office at 187-189 Foundry Street, Newark, New Jersey 07105. Shipco relied on these
misrepresentations made by Respondents. Using the Aromark name, Georgescu
requested individually and on behalf of Jem Logistics NVOCC shipping services to be
provided by Shipco for the shipment of a vehicle from Long Beach to Sydney, Australia.

5. Respondents also misrepresented their own name, Jem Logistics, Inc. and
status as an NVOCC when that company was in fact not licensed by the FMC, and not
bonded at the times mentioned in this Complaint. Respondents used instead the false
name. Aromark Shipping LLC . and a false status that Respondent Georgescu’s company
was a licensed OTI.. and sought shipping services from Shipco. Shipeo, its officers and
employecs. reasonably relied on the misrepresentations made by respondents, and each of
them.

0. The bill of lading for this shipment. dated May 14. 2010 indicated that
Aromark Shipping LLC {Aromark) at the address of Jem Logistics in Gardena, California
was the shipper. as was falsely stated o Shipco by Georgescu. In fact, Aromark is a
licensed Newark. New Jersey NVOCC and has no office at Gardena, and had nothing to
do with the shipment described in the bill of lading attached to this Complaint as Exhibit
“A.7. These false statements by Respondents . and each of them. were relied upon by
Shipco.

7. Respondent Georgescu presented to Shipco a copy of the Aromark NVOCC

License. which s attached hereto as Exhibit “B,” which document was relied upon by



Shipco officers and employees. Bill of Lading Instructions provided by Respondents to
Shipco for the Sydney Australia shipment of vehicle cargo also falsely indicated
Aromark as the shipper and gave Aromark’s address as the address of Jem Logistics at
717 E. Gardena Blvd, Gardena, CA 90248. Shipco employees relied to Shipco’s
detriment on Georgescu’s and Jem Logistics’s misrepresentations and provided NVOCC
shipping services believing that he represented Aromark in this transaction.

8. The vehicle being shipped by Georgescu and Jem Logistics was shipped in a
container, which when it arrived in Sydney was not claimed by the consignee at that
destination. Instead it was abandoned and expenses for demurrage and fees for disposal
of the cargo in Sydney in the amount of $15.797.90. were charged to Aromark at the Jem
Logistics office as indicated by the invoice from Shipco to Georgescu and Jem Logistics
dated Jan. 28. 201 1. attached hereto as Exhibit ~C."

9. Shipco charged Respondents an administrative fee of $75.00 that was added to
the balance owed. so that the total amount owed was $15.872.90. as indicated in the
invoice. This invoice was delivered to Respondents on or about the date of the document,
January 28. 2011. The invoice was sent to Aromark’s name at Georgescu's and Jem
Logistics office address as provided by Respondents. Although Respondents
misrepresented the correct name of the shipper in this transaction by naming Aromark
Shipping LLC. the true shipper was Jem Logistics by Andi Georgescu an individual
doing business under the name of Jem Logistics. Inc.

10. Shipco Transport Inc. issued a Bill of Lading referred to herein for the

shipment from Long Beach to Sydney Australia of a vehicle described as a Ford Blazer




(Exhibit “A.”). A copy of Shipco’s Terms and Conditions contained in Shipco’s bill of
lading is attached hereto as Exhibit “A.”

11. These Terms and Conditions state in paragraph 19(5) that freight owed by the
shipper, shall cause interest to accrue at the rate of 6% per year. Pursuant to Paragraphs
9(5) of the Terms and Conditions and also Shipco’s official Tariff in effect on the date of
the Sydney shipment (on or after May 14, 2010), Rule 7 (5 and 6), the Merchant, i.c.,
defendants in this matter, are responsible for paying demurrage and detention during and
after carriage and are required to hold the carrier harmless and indemnify the carrier from
any liability for demurrage and/or detention.

12. In Shipco’s Terms and Conditions, the shipper is specifically responsible for
paying demurrage. together with interest and attorney’s fees. See Clause 9(5) and Clause
19(5). In this case the total amount subject to the interest provided is $15,872.90. an
amount that continues to accrue at the stated interest rate of 6%. according to proof..

13, Although Shipco sent the invoice to Georgescu's office address at Jem
Logistics. Inc.. 717 Gardena Blvd. Gardena. CA 90248. neither Georgescu nor Jem
Logistics has paid the sums stated on the attached invoice.

14. Following abandonment of the cargoes in Sydney. Australia. on or about May
14, 2010 and following. respondents Jem Logistics and Georgescu failed to pay the
invoice furnished by Plaintiff on Jan 28. 2011 which stated the demurrage charges that
were due and were not paid by respondents.

[5. Shipco has duly performed all obligations. conditions. and promises pursuant

to the contract of carriage between Respondents and Shipco by furnishing ocean




transportation of the cargoes by ocean common carrier resulting in the tender of delivery
as agreed in Sydney, Australia.

16.  As a direct result of Respondents® failure to pay Shipco the demurrage
related to freight charges in the total amount of 15,872.90 Shipco suffered damages after
payment of the same amount to the underlying carrier that assessed the demurrage
charges to Shipco.

VIOLATIONS

17.. By reason of the facts alleged in the foregoing paragraphs, Respondents
violated the Shipping Act by conducting transportation-related activity as an NVOCC
while not being bonded or licensed. and falsely using the name of Aromark Shipping
LLC. Aromark was a bonded. licensed NVOCC. having no legal or factual relationship
to the Respondents. 46 USC §40901 and 46 U.S.C. §40902.

18. By reason of the facts alleged in the foregoing paragraphs, Respondents
violated the provisions of the Shipping Act by failing to meet Shipping Act standards of
financial responsibility required by the Shipping Act and the FMC. 46 U.S.C.
§§40901.and 40902.

19. Respondents” improper and fraudulent conduct described herein violated the
Act because their misrepresentations misled Shipco to believe it was providing shipping
services to a [inancially responsible party. Aromark Shipping. LLC. Shipco relied on
these misrepresentations by Respondent s.. Respondents. however. failed to be either
licensed or bonded as required by 46 U.S. §8.40901 and 40902.

20. By reason of the facts alleged in the foregoing paragraphs. Respondents used false
information and misrepresentation about their lack of a bond and financial responsibility.

Respondents, therefore, violated the Shipping Act, 46 U.S.C. §41102 by attempting to obtain




Shipco shipping services relating to freight charges without paying for demurrage and removal of
cargo upon abandonment.in the absence of a bond to secure Respondents’ payment.

21. As adirect consequence of Respondents® violations Shipping Act stated above,
Complainant Shipco sustained actual injury when respondents failed to pay $15,872.90 in
demurrage and cargo disposal charges that Respondents were obligated to pay pursuant to
Shipco’s Terms and Conditions. and Shipco’s invoice attached to this Complaint Complainant is
entitled to an award of reparations for respondents” violation of the Shipping Act Sections 41102
and 41305.

22. In short. Shipco sustained actual injury as a direct result of Respondents’
misconduct in violation of the Shipping Act as stated herein entitling Shipco to
reparations pursuant to the Act. 46 U.S.C. §§41301 and 41305 (a) and (b).

23. As a direct consequence of the conduct of Respondents in violation of the
Shipping Act engaged in by Respondents. Complainant suffered actual injury as provided
herein. in the sum of $15.872.90 for Respondents™ failure to pay the invoice attached
hereto for demurrage and disposal of cargo plus interest at the rate of 6% per annum upon
the principal amount calculated from on or about May 14. 2010 and following until the
date relief is awarded by the Commission. according to proof.

24, Complainant suffered additional actual injury caused by Respondents by
defrauding Shipco by misrepresenting that Jem lLogistics was licensed and therefore or
bonded as required by the Shipping Act and by §§40901 and 40902.. Respondents failed
to meet their financial responsibility to Shipco by failing to pay charges billed by Shipco
for demurrage and disposal of cargo and related administrative charges in the sum of

$15.872.90.




25. Complainant Shipco suffered damages in the same amount on the basis of
further damages by Respondents breach of contact in the amount of $15,872.90.

Shipco suffered actual injury as a direct consequence of the fraud of Respondents as
described herein,

26. Shipco is entitled to attorney’s fees according to proof for collection of the
sums stated above pursuant to the Shipco Terms and Conditions Paragraph 19(5) attached
hereto (Exhibit “D”), and for claiming amounts due for freight and demurrage, according
to proof.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE. Complainant respectfully requests that the Commission issue the
following reliet:

1 An Order compelling Respondents to Answer the charges made herein
and scheduling a hearing in Washington. D.C. during which the Commission may receive
evidence in this matter:

2. An Order holding that the Respondents. Jem Logistics. Inc. and Andi
Georgescu individually and deing business as Jem Logistics Inc.’s activities described
herein were unlaw ful and in violation of the Shipping Act:

3. An Order compelling Respondents Jem Logistics. Inc. and Andi
Georgescu individually and doing business as Jem Logistics to make reparations to
Complainant Shipco in the amount of $15.872.90 for failure to pay demurrage and
disposal of the abandoned cargo as described herein;

4, For an order requiring Respondents to compensate Shipco for its

attorney s lees and expenses incurred in this matter according to proof.



5. For an order compelling Andi Georgescu and Jem Logistics, Inc. to pay
Complainant. six per cent interest on amounts consisting of demurrage and disposal of
cargo together with additional interest provided by law.

6. For an order requiring Respondents Jem Logistics, Inc. and

Andi Georgescu to pay Shipco’s aftorney’s fees for collection of sums due to

Complainant in this matter.
7... Such other and further relief as the Commission deems just and proper.

ALTERNATIVE DISPUTE RESOLUTION

The Commission’s informal dispute resolution procedures have not been used

prior to the filing of the Complaint. Counsel for the Complainant has not consulted with
the Commission’s Dispute Resolution Specialist about utilizing alternative dispute

resolution (ADR) under the Commission’s ADR Program.

A hearing is requested in Washington, D.C.



Respectfully submitted,

Dated: April , 2012

Todd C. Fineberg, Esq.
c/o Henry Gonzalez, Esq.

1250 Connecticut Ave. N, W, Suite 200,
Washington, D.C. 20036
240-388-0888 (Telephone)
202-293-3307 (Facsimile)

Email: tfineberg(@rorlaw.com

Carlos Rodriguez, Esq.

Husch Blackwell

750 17" Street, N.W.

Washington, DC 20006

Tel. 202-378-2365

Fax: 202-378-2319

Email: carlos.rodriguez/phuschblackwell.

Attorneys for Complainant
Shipco Transport Inc.

Dated in Washington, D.C. this 18" day of April 2012.
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VERIFICATION

Christian Mogelvang declares and states that he is the president of Shipco
Transport Inc., Complainant in this proceeding, and that the foregoing Complaint is true
to the best of his information and belief; and that the grounds of his belief as to all
matters not upon his own personal knowledge is information which has otherwise been

provided to Complainant.

I declare and state under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.

Executed on April o .. 2012 C@\

Christian Mogelvang

President

Shipco Transport Inc.
80 Washington Street
Hoboken, NJ 070300
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BILL OF LADING =

Shipco Transport Inc

“ETPPERL AP ORATER (COMPLETE NAME AN ADORE BOOKING NO. BILL GF LADING NO
é%O%RAKRggLTK g\]{_% {leC 2869468 SYDo869468
GARDENA, CA 90248 00:3“:55 s

"TUNSIGHLE MOT NEGOTIADLE UNLESS CONBIGNEY TO OROER
BT) LOGISTICS SYD '
/- AMI BOND
SYDNEY, NSW

FORWARDING AGENT, F.RLC. NO

G T e T
CA, US

e, e————————————r—————— i
NOTIFY PARTY (COMPLETE NAWME AND ADDRESS)

FOR DELIVERY PLEAGE APPLY 10

SAME AS ABOVE AGS WORLD TRANSPORT L. P.
UNIT 8, MOLINEUX FOINT,
11-13 FRIENDSHIP ROAD
PORT BOTANY, NSW 2036
Tel : 01161296684555 Fax : 01161296664226
PRECARTIRGEBY PLACE OF RECEIPT BY PRE-CARRIER" T TRANGSHIFIENT FORT
LONG BEAGH, CA
“TRVTRT CARRIER [VESSELVOTTLAG] PCRT OF OADING LOADING FIEFRIT ERMINAL
MSC JUDITH V1020 LONG BEACH, CA CY{QY 1005084123
PORT OF DASCHARGE FLACE OF DELIVaRY OV GN CARRIER! “[FCNBER OF GRGINALS
CHIWAN SYDNEY EXPRESS
_ PART CULARS FURNISHED BY SHIPPER S
HARIKS & NDS/CONTAINER NOG L NO. CF PHGE _L-__“‘“ o LERCRIPSIGN OF P-ACKAGES / ND \"i?_O_ES “_GROSS WIGHT _E_F MEASUREMENY -
AnFLI3018100 - CXZOETD &L AC 1 VEHIDLE 5511.300L5S) 847 550CBF
PRI 3L AZER 78 2500.018GE  24.00008M
VINAUMSHLL DL T26% ) ; '
AS ADDRED TITLE NUMBER:ETN5E297582 i
TITCE $TA™E: A ;
FINg A20100505038511 i|
LADEN ON BOARD: 5/14/2010
FREIGHT PREPAILC

SHIPPER'S LOAD, BTOW, COUNT AND SEAL

CDC/CSC COLLECIT
FREIGHT PREPAID

Bla(g)el\*-(l)\! ?GOTIABLE

Container: AMFU3018100/TBA Total: 5511.500LBS 847.550CBF
Tt ot ooy S SRS I iy 2500.016KGS  24.000CEM
SHIPPERS DECLARED VALUE &
SUBJFCT TC EXTRA FREIGhT AS PER VARIEF AND CLAUSE 8 {4) (3) = (S} OF THMIS BL
FREIGHT & CHARGES HASIS RATE PIE=AID COLLECT
SECURITY FEE PC 6.00 { USD 8.00
B.AF. PC 50.00 | USD 50,00
QCEAN FREIGHT PC 1713.00 | USD 1713.00
RECEWED by iro Camor the Goods as spocified abave In asparent gosa rder anc cond icn TOTAL TOTAL
unisss othe-wise s:3led, lo be ranspcred to such pluca 84 agrend, aulnenzed o' pemrilled
T o ers by Soas v o B ol 70 Sttt s
acr 2 i5rens by ing i . and 'ocal pn -
wsJ.og\B's nepwinstaning, Thb’p:rﬂou{a:s ;Sen”ano,a as s-,z:ca":?y the shipp:: mdg:fm ?\.n.gnl, USD 1 ?69.00

me2suse, Juanlity, cond tlicn, conienls, and Yake cf the Goats are uhown 19 Ine Camer,
in WITNESS whareo! three (3) ofiginal bills of Ladnn[g hava been signed if not atharwise stated
abave. Ihe $8me being accomplished tha ulhsr(s%gi ary, to he youl f requited
g} ongwnal Bil of Lading must be surrgndered du

arrer.

\ré Carrior tne
enddrsod in exchange Signed on betalf of the

AT ONG BEACH  on  MAY 14, 2010

sy SHIPCO TRANSPORT INC. AS CARRIER
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Shipco Transport In¢

80 Washington Street
Hoboken, NJ 07030
Usa

AROMARK SHIPPING LLG

Telephone : +1 201 216 1500

Telefax 1 41201216 0090

E-mail : carp@shipco.com

Website : www.shipco.com
Invoice

*"PLACED WITH LAWYERS FEB 201 {**r++++

717 E. GARDENA BLVD.

**CERTIFIED FUNDS ONLY**

GARDENA CA 90248
Qur Ref : 1005084123

Your Ref ; 9869468

Customer Code ; JEMLOGCA

Date : 28-JAN-2011

Invoice No : 11015518

Re :MSC JUDITH LGB/SYD ETS: 14-MAY-10

AMFU3018100
B/L: SYD9859468

ABANDONMENT OF CONTAINER IN SYDNEY - CONTAINER UNCLAIMED
BY GNEE. CHRGS FOR DEM AND DISPOSAL OF CARGO.

ADMIN. FEE

This document was preparad by : Lorraine Tier

Total Amount

Payment Terms : Cash or net 10 days from date of invoice

Uspo 15,797 .90
usp 75.00
!
usD 15,872.90
To Your Debit

Please Make Payment To: Shipeo Transport Inc.
P.0.Box 1411, Hoboken,NJ 07030

TEL : +1 201 216 1500 FAX: +1 201 216 0080

For Wire Transfers, Please Use:
Sank Of Naw York

New York, NY
ABA#(Routing#):.021000018
Favour Of

Beneficiary: Shipco Transport Inc.
Swiit Code; ESSEUS33
Account#: 00004044

Bank: Skandinaviske

Enskilda Banken

New Yori, NY

For Swift Messages, Please Use:
Bank Cf New Yeork

New York, NY

Swift Code:IRVTUS3N

Favour Of

Beneficiary: Shipeco Transport Inc.
Swilt Cods: ESSEUS33
Account#; 00004044

Bank: Skandinaviske

Enskilda Banken

New York, NY

For ACH Payments, Please Use:
PNC Bank N.A.
ABA#(ROUTING#):043000006
Favour Of

Benoficiary: Shipeo Transport Inc.
ACCOUNT#: 1026683617
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Bill of Lading Terms and Conditions

Bill of Lading Terms and Conditions

1. DEFINITIONS
Carriage!
Carrier:
Charges:
COGSA.
COGWA:
Combined
Transport:

Container:

Defenses:

Freight:

Goods!:
Hague Rules:
Hague-Visby

Rules:
Merchant:

Package:

Participating
Carrier:

Person:

Port to Port
Shipment:
Shipping Unit:

Stuffed:

http://www.shipco.com/ecommerce/include/termsconditions php

Means the whole of the operations and services undertaken or performed by or on
behalt of the Carrier In respect of the Goods.

means the Company stated on the front of this Bill of Lading as being the Carrier
and on whose behalf this Bill of Lading has been signed

Means freight and all expenses and money obligations incurred and payable by the
Merchant.

Means the Camage of Goods by Sea Act of the Urited States of America approved
on 16th April 1938.

Means the Hague-Visby Rules.

Arnses where the carriage called for by this Bill of Lading Is not a Part to Port
shipment.

Means any container, traler, transportable tank, lift van, flat, pallet, or any similar
article of transport used to consolidate goods.

Means all rights, immunities, exclustons, exemptions, defenses, limitations,
however described (no matter whether ansing by law or by contract), which might
abhate, bar, defeat or diminish any recovery against the Carrier,

Means all of the following relating to or in connection with the Goods: ocean freight
and other charges provided by the Camer's applicable tariff, including but not
limited to ad valorem charges, advance charges and less than full container Joad
service charges, currency adjustment factor, bunker adjustment factor, surcharges,
war risk premiums, arbitrary and accessorial charges, ail charges arising as a
result of changing the port of loading or discharge, and expenses asising or
Incurred under this Bill of Lading, additional freight or other charges; deadifreight,
special freignt for the carmage of special containers; return freight if the Goods are
returned.

Means the cargo suppliea by the Merchant and includes any Container not
supplied by or on behalf of the Carrier

Means the provisions of the International Convention for Unificabon of certain
Rules relating to Bills of Lading signed at Brussals on 25th August 1824.

Means the Hague Rules as amended by the Protocol signed at Brussels on 23rd
Fevruary 1968

Means the shipper, the consignee, the receiver of the Goods, the holder of this Sill
of Lading, any person awning or enfitied to the possession of the Goods or this Bill
of Lading, any person having a present or future interestin the Goods or any
person acting on behalf of any of the above mentioned persons.

(1) the Container when the Goods are shipped in a Container

(2} the skid or pallet when Goods are shipped on a skid or pailet and stuffed in a
Container, and the Container is adjudged not to be the package for the purposes of
the Carrier's imitation of hability

(3) the skid or pallet when Goods are shipped on a skid or pallet but not ina
Container

(4) that shipping unit which contains the greatest quantity of the Goods and to
which scme packaging preparation for transportation has been made which
faciitates handing even though 1t does not conceal or completely enclose the
Goods. This clause does not apply to Goods shipped in bulk, and it supersedes
any inconsistent provision which may be printed, stamped or written elsewhere in
this Bill of Lading.

Means the ocean carrier and any other water, land or air carrier involved in the
Carriage of the Goods whether it be a Port to Port or @ Combined Transpont
movement

Means an individual, & partnership, @ body corporate or other entity.

Means when the port of lcading and the port of discharge only are shown on the
face hereof and neither the place of acceptance nor the final destination are
stipulated on the face hereof.

Means freight unit and the term "unt” as used In the Hague Rules and Hague-
Visby Rules.

Means filled, consolidated, packed, loaded, or secured.

Page 1 of 7
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bl of Laaing lerms and Conditions Page 2 of 7

2. CARRIER'S TARIFF

The provisions of the Carrier's appilicable tariff, are incorporated herein. A copy of the applicable tariff is
available for review in the Carrier's web-site upan payment of a reasonabie charge, if any, set out in the
Carrier's tariff and/or where applicable, upon request, obtainable from the Interstate Commerce Commission
or other regulatory body with whom the tariff has been filed. In the case of inconsistency between this Bill of
Lading and the applicable Tanff, this Bill of Lading shall prevail.

3. WARRANTY

The Merchant warrants that in agreeing to the terms hereof he I1s or is the agent of and has the authonty of
the parson owing or entitled to the possession of the Goods or any person who has a present or future
interest in the Goods.

4. NON-NEGOTIABILITY OF BILL OF LADING

This Bill of Lading shali be non-negotiable unless made out "to order” in which event it shall be negotiable and
shall constitute title to the Goods and the holder shall be entitled to receive or to transfer the Goods herein
described.

5. CERTAIN RIGHTS AND IMMUNITIES FOR THE CARRIER AND OTHER PERSONS

(1) The carrier shall be entitled to sub-contract on any terms the whole or any part of the Carriage.

(2) It is expressly agreed that any and all servants, agents and independent contractors {including the
Master, officers, and crew of the vessel, participating carrier, all terminal operators, warehousemen,
stevedores, watchman, husbanding agents, managing agents, general agents, ship's agents, and all other
agents, subcontractors and independent contractors whatsoever as well as any officers, directors, agents or
employees of any of the foregoing) used or employed by the Carrier in connaction with the performance of
any or all of Carnier's obligations under this bifl of lading, in consideration of the agreement to be so used or
employed, shall be express beneficiaries under this bill of lading and shall have the benefit of all defenses to
which the Carrier 1s entitled so that in no circumstances shall any servant, agent or independent contractor of
the Carrier be under any hability i contract, warrant, tort (including negligence) indemnity or contribution,
greater than that of the Carrier to anyone other than the Carrier.

{3) The Merchant shall defend, indemnify and hold harmiess the Carrier against any claim or liability {(and
any expense arising therefrom) arising from the Carriage of the Goods insofar as such claim or Lability
exceeds the Carner's liability under this BilY of Lading.

(4) The defenses and imits of kability provided for in this 8ilt of Lading shall apply :n any action against the
Carrier whether the action be found in Cantract ar in Tort,

6, CLAUSE PARAMOUNT

(1) To and From non-United States Ports, As far as this Bill of Lading covers the Carriage of Goods by saa to
and from non-U.S. ports by the Carrier and any Parucipating Carrier, the Contract evidenced i this Bill of
Lading shall have effect subject to the Hague-Visby Rules, If and as enacted In the country of shipment and
any legislation making those Rules compulsorily applicable to this Bill of Lading shall be deeamed incorporated
herein and made part of this Bill of Lading contract. When no such enactment is in force in the country of
shipment, the Hague-Visby Rules will apply. The Hague-Visby Rules shall also govern befare the Goods are
loaded on and after they are discharged from tha vessel and throughout the entire time the Goods are in the
actual custody of the Carrier or Participating Carrier. The Hague-Visby Rules shall also apply to the Carriage
of Goods by infand waterways and reference to carriage by sea in such Rules or legislation shall be deemed to
include reference to inland waterways.

(2) To or Fram Uruted States ports. If the Carnage called for in this Bill of Lading is a shipment to or from the
United States, the Lability of the Carrier shall be exclusively determined pursuant to COGSA; the Pomerene
Act [49 U.S.C. §80101 et. seq.] for both export and import cargo moving toffrom the United States; and
Article 7-301 of the Uniform Commercial Code. The provisions cited in the Hague Rules and COGSA shall also
govern before the Goods are loaded on and after they are discharged from the Vessel and throughout the
entire time the Goods are in the actual custedy of the Carrier or Participating Carrier.

{3) The Carrier shall be entitled to (and nothing in this Bill of Lading shall operate to deprive or himit such
entitlement) the full benefit of, and rights to, al) mitation of and exciusions from liability and all rights
conferred or authorised by any applicable law, statute or regulation of any country (including, but not limited
to, where applicable any provisions or sections 4281 to 4287, inclusive, of the Revised Statutes of the United
States of America and amendments thereto and where apphcable any provisions of the laws of the United
States of America) and without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing also any law, statute of regulation
available to the Owner of the vessel on which the Goods are carried.

7. CARRIER'S RESPONSIBILITY

The Carrier shall not be respansibie for any loss to the Goods however caused occurring while the Goods are
not In the actuaf custody of the Carrier.

(1) PORT TO PORT SHIPMENT
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The responsibility of the Carrier is limited to that part of the Carriage from and during loading onto vessel up
to and during discharge from the vessel and the Carrier shall not be liable for any less or damage whatsoever
in respect of the Goods or for any other matter arising during any other part of the Carrnage even though
Charges for the whole Carriage have been charged by the Carrier. The Merchant appoints and/or authorizes
the Carrier as agent to enter inte contracts on behalf of the Merchant with others for transport, storage,
handling, or any other services in respect of the Goods prior to loading and subsequent to discharge of the
Goods from the vessel without responsibility for any act or omission whatsoever on the part of the Carrier or
others and the Carrier may as such agent enter into contracts with others on any terms whatsoaver including
terms less favorable than the terms in this Bill of Lading.

(2) COMBINED TRANSPORT

(A} The carrier acts as agent for Merchant with regard to procuring inland and ocean transportation. If, for
any reason, it is adjudged that the Carrier was not acting as the Merchant's agent, then in addition to the
defenses and limitation of hability permitted to the Carrier by faw and by this bill of lading, the Carrier shall
also have the benefit of all defenses available to the participating carrier(s) by law and by the tarms of its or
their contracts of Carriage and tariffs, all of which shall be deemed incorporated in this bill of lading, as
applicable and with respect to inland transportation of the Goods, Carrier will be afforded all of the defenses
according to the provisions of any International Convention or national law which is compuisorily applicable in
the country, where the inland transportation took place or, if no such law or convention is applicable, then
according to the Participating Carrler's contracts of carniage and/or tariffs, if any.

(B) Save as is otherwise provided in this Bill of Lading, the Carrier shall be liable for loss of or damage to the
Goods occurring frorn the time that the Goods are taken into his charge until the time of delivery to the agent
set out below.

(i) If the place where the loss or damage occurred cannot be proven.

{2) The Carrier shali be entitled to rely upon all Defenses under COGSA or the Hague-Visby Rules under 6(a)
or (b} above had the loss or damage occurred at sea or where the loss or damage occurred cannot be proved,
said loss or damage shall be presumed to have occurred at sea.

(b) Where under (1) above, the Carrier is not liable in respect of some of the factors causing the loss or
damage, the Carrier shall only be liable to the extent that those factors for which he is liable have contributed
to the loss or damage. (c) Subject to 8(c) below,

where the Hague Rules (such as COGSA) or the Hague-Visby Rules (such as COGWA) or any legislation
applying either Rules is not compulsorily applicable, the Carrier's liability shall mot exceed US$500 per
package or shipping unit or US$2.00 per kilo of the gross weight of the Goods fost, damaged in respect of
which the claim arises or the value of such Goads, whichever is the less. (d) The value of the goods shall be
determined according to the CIF value, (i) If the place where the loss or damage occurred can be proved: (a)
the liability of the Carrier shall be determined by the provisions contained In any internationai convention or
national law of the country which provisions: (A) cannot be departed from by private contract to the
detriment of the Merchant; and (B) would have applied If the Merchant had made a separate and direct
contract with the Carrier in respect of the particular stage of Carriage where the loss or damage occurred and
had received as evidence thereof any particular document which must be 1ssued 1n order to make such
International convention or national law applicable; (b) with respect to the transportation in the United States
of America or in Canada to the Port of Loeading or frem the Port of Discharge the responsibility of the Carrier
shail be to procure transportation by carriers (one or more} and such transportation shall be subject to the
inland carriers contract of carniage and tariffs and any law compulsorily applicable. The Carrier guarantees the
fulfillmant of such inland carrier's obligations under their contracts and tariffs; (c) where neither (i) or (i)
above apply any lhability of the Carrier shali be determined by 7(b)(A) above.

8, GENERAL PROVISIONS

(1) Delay, Consequential Loss Save as otherwise provided herein, the Carrier shall in no circumstances be
liable for direct, indirect or consequential loss or damage caused by delay or any other cause whatsoever and
howsoever caused. Without prejudice to the foregoing, if the Carrier 1s found liable for detay, liability shall be
limited to the freight applicable to the relevant stage of the transport.

{2) Package or Shipping Unit Lirnitation

Where the Hague Rules (COGSA) or Hague-Visby Rules (COGWA) or any legislation making erther Rules
compulsority applicable to this Bill of Lading, the Carrier shall not unless a declared value has been noted in
accordance with (C) below, be or becomne liable for any loss or damage to or in connection with the Goods in
an amount per package or shipping unit in excess of the package or shipping unit limitation as laid down by
either of the Rules or legislation. Such Iimitation amount according to COGSA is US$500 and according to
COGWA 1s 666.67 units of account per package or units of account per kilogram of gross weight of the Goods
lost or damaged, whichever 15 the higher. If no imitation amount is applicable under either of the Rules or
fegislation the hmitatien shall be US$500.

(3) Ad Valorem: Declared Value of Package or Shipping Unit The Carrier's liability may be increased to a
higher value by a declaration in writing of the value of the Goods by the shipper upon delivery to the Carrier
of the Goods for shipment, such higher vaiue being inserted on the front of this Bill of Lading in the space
provided and, If required by the Carrier, extra freight paid. In such case, if the actual value of the Goods shall
exceed such declared value, the value shall nevertheless be deemed to be the declared value and the
Carrier's liability, if any, shall not exceed the declared value and any partial loss or damage shall be adjustaed
pro rata on the basis of such declared value.

(4) Rust, etc. It is agreed that superficial rust, oxidation or any like condition due to moisture is not a
condition of damage but is Inherent to the nature of the Goods and the acknowledgement of the receipt of the
Goods in apparent good order and condition is not a representation that such conditions of rust, oxidation or

http://www shipco.com/ecommerce/include/termsconditions.php 3/21/2012




Bill ot Lading lerms and Conditions Page 4 of 7

the like did not exist on receipt.

(5) Notice of Loss or Damage

The Carrier shall be deemed prima facie to have delivered the Goods as described in this Bill of Lading unless
notice of loss of or damage to the Goods indicating the general nature of such loss or damage shall have been
given in wnting to the Carrier or to his representative at the place of delivery before or at the time of removal
of the Goods Into the custody of the person entitled to delivery thereof under this Bill of Lading or, if the loss
or damage is not apparent, within three consecutive days thereaftar.

{6) Time-bar

{A)Unless notice of loss and the general nature of such loss be given in writing to the Cartier at the pert of
discharge or place of delivery before or at the time of delivery of the Goods or if the loss is not apparent,
within three (3) consecutive days after that delivery, the Goods shall be presumed to have been delivered as
described in this Bill of Lading.

(B) Where the loss has occurred in the custody of a Participating Carrier, the Carrier shall be discharged from
all liability in respect of loss unless notice of claim is filed and sult is brought within nine {9) months after
delivery of the Goods or the date when the Goods should have been delivered or the time period prescribed
by the Participating Carrier's contract of carriage, tariff or by law covering such Participating Carrier or
overland carriage whichever is [ess (in the United States, pursuant to the Carmack Amendment, 49 U.S.C.
§11-107(a), suit must be brought within nine months).

{C) In any event, the Carrier shall be discharged from all liabifity in respect of loss unlass suit is brought
within one (1) year after delivery of the Goods or the date when the Goods should have been delivered.

9. MERCHANT'S RESPONSIBILITY

(1) The description and particulars of the Goods set out on the face hereof are furnished by the Merchant and
the Merchant warrants to the Carrier that the description and particulars including, but not limited to, of
weight, contant, measure, quantity, quality, condition, marks, numbers and value are correct.

(2) The Merchant shall comply with all applicabie laws, regulations and requirements of customs, port and
other authorities and shalt bear and pay all duties, taxes, fines, Imposts expenses and losses incurred or
suffered by reason thereof or by reason of any illegal, incorrect or insufficient marking, numbering or
addressing of the Goods.

(3) The Merchant undertakes that the Goods are packed In & mannar adequate to withstand the erdinary
risks of Carriage having regard to their nature and in compliance with all laws, regulations and requirements
which may be applicable.

(4) No Goods which are or may becorme dangerous, inflammable or damaging or which are or may becorne
liable to darnage any property of person whatsoever shall be tendered to the Carrier for Carriage without the
Carrier's express consent n writing and without the Container or other covering in which the Goods are to be
transparted and the Goads being distinctly marked on the outside 50 as to indicate the nature and character
of any such articles and so as to comply with alf applicable laws, regulations and requirements. If any such
articles are delivered to the Carrier without such written consent and rarking or if in the opinion of the
Carrier the articles are or are liable to become of a dangerous, inffammable or damaging nature, the same
may at any time be destroyed, disposed of, abandoned, or rendered harmlass without compensation to the
Merchant and without prejudice to the Carrier's right to Charges.

(5) The Merchant shall be liable for the loss, damage, contamination, soiling, detention or demurrage before,
during and after the Carriage of property (including, but not limited to, Containers) of the Carner or any
person or vessel (other than the Marchant) referred to In 5(2) above caused by the Merchant or any person
acting on his behalf or for which the Merchant 1s otherwise responsible.

(6) The Merchant shall defend, indemnify and hold hatimless the Carrier against any loss damage, claim,
liability or expense whatsoever arising from any breach of the provisions of this clause 9 or from any ¢ause in
connectioh with the Goods for which the Carrier is not responsible.

10. CONTAINERS

(1) Goods may be stuffed by the Carrier in or on Containers and Goads may be stuffed with other Goods.
(2) The terms of this Bill of Lading shall govern the responsibility of the Carrier in connection with or arising
out of the supply of a Container to the Merchant, whether supplied before or after the Goods are received by
the Carrier or delivered to the Merchant.

(3) If a Container has been stuffed by or on behalf of the Merchant.

(&) the Carrier shall not be hable for joss of or damage to the Goods

(1) caused by the manner in which the Container has been stuffed

(i) caused by the unsuitability of the Gaods for carriage n Containers

(1) caused by the unsuitabiity or dafective candition of the Container provided that where the Container has
been supplied by or on behalf of the Carrier, this paragraph (iii} shall only apply If the unsuitability or
defective condition arose (a) without any want of due diligence on the part of the Carrier or (b) would have
been apparent upon reasonable Inspection by the Merchant at or prior to the time when the Container was
stuffed; (iv) if the Container 1s not sealed at the commencement of the Carriage except where the Carrier has
agreed to seal the Container. {B) The Merchant shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Carrier against
any loss, damage, clawm, llabiity or expense whatsoever ansing from one or more of the matters covered by
(A) above except for (A)(il1)(a) above.

(4) Where the Carrier 1s instructed to provide a Container, In the absence of a written request to the
contrary, the Carrier Is not under an obligation to provide a Container of any particular type or quality.

11. TEMPERATURE CONTROLLED CARGO
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{1) The Merchant undertakes not to tender for transportation any Goods which require temperature control
without previously giving written notice (and filling in the box on the front of this Bill of Lading if this Bill of
Lading has been prepared by the Marchant or a person acting on his behalf) of their nature and particular
temperature range to be maintained and in the case of a temperature controlled Container stuffed by or on
behalf of the Merchant furthar undertakes that the Container has been properly pre-cocled, that the Goods
have been properly stuffed in the Container and that its thermostatic controls have been properly set by the
Merchant before receipt of the Goods by the Carrier.

If the above requirements are not complied with the Carrier shall not be liabfe for any loss of or damage to
the Goods caused by such non compliance.

{2) The Carmer shall not be hable for any loss of or damage to the Goods arising from defects, derangement,
breakdown stoppage of the temperature controlling machinery, plant, insulation or any apparatus of the
Container, provided that the Carrier shall before or at the beginning of the Carriage exercise due diligence to
maintain the refrigerated Container in an efficient state.

12, INSPECTION OF GOODS

The Carrier or any person authorized by the Carrier shall be entitled, but under no obligatien, to open any
Container or Package at any time and to inspect the Geods.

13. MATTERS AFFECTING PERFORMANCE

(1) If at any time the Carriage is or is likely to be affected by any hindrance, risk, delay, difficulty or
disadvantage of any kind (including the condition of the Goods) whensoever and howsoever arising {whether
or not the Carriage has commenced) the Carrier may:

{A) without notice to the Merchant abandon the Carriage of the Gaods and where reasonably possible place
the Goods or any part of them at the Merchant's disposal at any place which the Carrier may deem safe and
convenient, whereupon the responsibility of the Carrier in respect of such Goods shall cease; (B) without
prejudice to the Carrier's right subsequently to abandon the Carriage under (A) above, continue the Carriage.
In any event the Carrier shall be entitled to full Charges on Goods received for Carriage and the Merchant
shall pay any additional costs resulting from the above rnentioned circumstances.

{2) The liability of the Carrier in respect of the Goods shall cease on the detivery or other disposition of the
Goods in accordance with the orders or recommendatiens given by any government or authority or any
person acting or purporting to act as or on behalf of such government or authority.

14, METHODS AND ROUTE OF TRANSPORTATION

{1) The Carrier may at any time and without notice to the Merchant use (i) any means of transport or storage
whatsoever, (1) load or carry the Goods on any vessel whether named on the front hereof or not, (in) transfer
the Goods from one conveyance to another including transshipping or carrying the same on another vessel
than that named on the front hereof or by any other means of transport whatsoever, {iv) at any place unpack
and remove Goods which have been stuffed 1n or on a Container and forward the same in any manner
whatsoever ncluding but not limited to unstuffing and stuffing of less than container loads into or an other
containers at transshipment ports, (v) proceed at any speed and by any route in Carriar's discretion (whether
or not the nearest or most direct or customary or advertised route) and proceed to or stay at any place
whatsoever once or more often and in any order, (vi) load or unload the Goeds from any conveyance at any
place (whether or not the place is a port named on the front heraof as the intended Port of Loading or
intended Port of Discharge), (vii) comply with any orders or recommendatians given by any government or
authority or any person or body acting or purporting to act as or on behalf of such government or authority or
having under the terms of the insurance on the conveyance employed by the Carrier the right to give orders
or directions, (viii) permit the vessel to proceed with or without pilots, to tow or be towed or to be dry-
docked, (ix) permit the vessel to carry Goods of all kinds, dangerous or otherwise.

(2) If a less than a full container shipment Is transshipped at any intermediate port, the Carrier may break
the contamner seal to unstuff the shipment from the container and restuff that shipment into or on another
container. In this respect, the Carrier is acting as the agent of the Merchant, (3} The liberties set out in (1)
and (2) above may be invoked by the Carrier for any purposes whatsoever whether or not connected with the
Carriage of the Goods. Anything done in accordance with {1) above or any delay arising therefrom shall be
deemed to be within the contractual Carriage and shall not be a deviation of whatsoever nature or degree.

15. DECK CARGO

(1) Goods of any description whether containerized or not may be stowed on or under deck without notice to
the Merchant and such stowage shall not be a daviation of whatsoever nature or degree. Subject to (2)
below, such Goods whether carried on deck or under deck shall participate in General Average and such
Goods shall be deemed to be within the definition of Goods for the purposes of the Hague Rules or any
tegislation making such Rules or the Hague Visby Rules compulsority applicable (such as COGSA) to this Bilf of
Lading.

{2) Goods (not being Goods stuffed in or on Containers other than open flats or paliets) which are stated on
the front of this Bill of Lading to be carried on deck and which are so carried are carried without responsibility
on the part of the Carrier for logs or damage of whatsoever nature ansing during carnage by sea or inland
waterway whether caused by unseaworthiness or negligence or any other cause whatsoever.

16. NOTIFICATION AND DELIVERY CLAUSE
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{1) Any mention in this Bill of Lading of parties to be notified of the arrival of the Goods is solely for the
information of the Carrier, and failure to give such notification shall not involve the Carrier in any liability or
remove the Merchant of any obligations hereunder.

(2) The Merchant shall take delivery of the Goods within the time provided for in the Carvier's applicable
tariff.

(3) If the Merchant fails to take delivery of the Goods or part of them in accordance with this Bill of Lading,
the Carrier may without notice remove the Goods or that part thereof and/or store the Goods or that part
thereof ashore, afloat, in the open or under cover. Such storage shall constitute due delivery hereunder and
there upon all liability whatsoevar of the Carrier in respect of the Goods or that part thereof shall cease. (4)
The Merchant's attention is drawn to the stipulation concerning free storage time and demurrage contained in
the Carrier's applicable Tariff, which 1s incorporated n this Bill of Lading.

(5) Once free time has expired, the Goods will be stored at a warehouse or receiver's terminal at the sole risk
and expense of the Merchant and the Goods. However, if the Carriar believes that the Gaods are likely to
deteriorate, decay, lose value or incur storage or other charges in excess of their valug, the Carrier may,
without notice to the Merchant, publicly or privately sell or dispose of the Goods and apply the proceeds of
the dispasition in reduction of the Freight, and any other charges associated with the warehousing and/or sale
of the Goods.

17. BOTH-TO-BLAME COLLISION

The both blame clause published by the Baltic and International Maritire Counsel (BIMCO) is incorporated
herein by this reference.

18. GENERAL AVERAGE

(1) The Carrier may declare General Average which shall be adjustable accarding to the York/Antwerp Rules
of 1974 at any place at the option of the Carrier and the Amended Jason Clause as approved by BIMCO is to
be considered as incorporated herein and the Merchant shall provide such sacurity as may be required by the
Carrier in this connection.

(2) Notwithstanding (1) above, the Merchant shall defend, indemnify and hold harmiess the Carrier in respect
of any claim (and any expense arising therefrom) of a General Average nature which rmay be made on the
Carrier and shall provide such security as may be required by the Carriar in this connection,

(3) The Carrier shall be under no obligation to take any steps whatscevar to collect security for General
Average contributions due to the Merchant.

19, CHARGES

(1) Charges shall be deemed fully earned on receipt of the Goods by the Carrier and shall be paid and non-
returnable in any event, whather vessel, inland carrier andfor cargo lost or not lost. {2) The Charges have
been calculated on the basis of particulars furnished by or on behalf of the Merchant, The Carrier shall be
entltled to production of the commercial rnvoice for the Goods or true copy thereof and to mspect, reweigh,
remeasure and revalue the Goods and If the particutars are found by the Carrier to be incorrect the Merchant
shall pay the Carner the correct Charges {credit being given for the Charges charged) and the costs incurred
by the Carner in establishing the correct particulars.

(3} All Charges shall be paild without any set off, counterclaim, deduction or stay of execution.

(4) Any parson, firm or corporation engaged by any party to perform forwarding services with respect to the
Goods shall be considered the exclusive agent of the Merchant for all purposes and any payment of Freight to
such person, firm or corporation shall not be considered payment to the Carrier in any event, Failure of such
person, firm, or corporation to pay any part of the Freight to the Carrier shall be considered a defauit by the
Merchant in the payment of the Freight.

(5) Should the Merchant fall to make timely payment of the applicable Freight, the Merchant shall be liable to
Carrier for all costs and expenses including attorneys' fees associated with the collection of such Freight from
the Merchant plus 6% of interest calculated from the date the Freight became due.

20. LIEN

The Carrler shall have a lien for General Average contribution and for Freight for the Carriage of the Goods
and on any documents relating te the Goods as wel! as In respect to unpaid Freight from any previous
Carriage on behalf of the Merchant who owes that Freight to the Carrier. The Carrier has the right to sell the
Gaods at public ar private sale without notice to the Merchant to satisfy the lien in whole or in part. If the
proceeds of this sale fail to cover the whole amount due, the Carner 1s entitled to recover the deficit from the
Merchant.

21. VARIATION CF THE CONTRACT

No servant or agent of the Carrier shall have power to waive or vary any of the terms hereof unless such
waiver or variation s In writing and is specifically authorized or ratified in writing by a director or officer of the
Carrier who has the actual authority of the Carrier so to waive or vary,

22. PARTIAL INVALIDITY

If any provision In this Bill of Lading is held to be invalid or unenforceable by any court or regulatory or self
regulatory agency or body, such invalidity or unenforceability shall attach only to such provision. The validity
of the remaining provisions shall not be affected thereby and this Bill of Lading contract shall ba carried out as
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if such invalid or unenforceable provision were not contained herein.

23, LAW AND JURISDICTION (a) To Or From United States Ports, The claims ansing from or in connection
with or relating to this Bill of Lading shall be exclusively governed by the law of the United States, Any and all
action concerning custody or cariiage under this Bill of Lading whether based on breach of contiracy, tort or
otherwise shall be brought before the United States District Court for the Southern District of New York.

{(b) To And From Non-U.S. Ports. The claims arising from or in connection with or relating to this Bill of Lading
shall be exclusively governed by English law. Any and all actions concerning custody or carriage under this Bill
of Lading whether based on breach of contract, tort or otherwise shall be brought before a London court of
competent jurisdiction.
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b1l of Lading 1erms and Conditions

Bill of Lading Terms and Conditions

1. DEFINITIONS
Carriage:
Carrier;
Charges:
COGSA:
COGWA:
Combined
Transpott:

Container:

Defenses:

Freight:

Goods:
Hague Rules;
Hague-Visby

Rules:
Merchant:

Package:

Participating
Carrier:

Person:

Paort to Port
Shipment:
Shipping Unit:

Stuffed:
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Means the whole of the operations and services undertaken or performed by or on
behalf of the Carrier in respect of the Goods.

means the Company stated on the front of this Bill of Lading as being the Carrier
and on whose behalf this Bill of Lading has been signed

Means freight and all expenses and money obligations incurred and payable by the
Merchant

Means the Carriage of Goods by Sea Act of the United States of America approved
on 16th Apn| 1938,

Means the Hague-Visby Rules.

Arises where the carriage called for by this Bill of Lading is not a Port to Port
shipment.

Means any container, trailer, transportable tank, lift van, flat, pallet, or any similar
article of transport used to consolidate goods.

Means all rights, immunities, exclusions, exemptions, defenses, limitations,
however described (no matter whether arising by law or by contract), which might
abate, bar, defeat or diminish any recovery against the Carrer.

Means all of the following relating to or in connection with the Goods: ocean freight
and other charges provided by the Carriet's applicable tariff, including but not
limited to ad valorem charges, advance charges and less than full container load
service charges, currency adjustment factor, bunker adjustment factor, surcharges,
war risk premiums, arbitrary and accessorial charges, all charges atising as a
result of changing the port of loading or discharge, and expenses arising ot
Incurred under this Bill of Lading; additional freight or other charges; deadfreight,
special freight for the carriage of special containers; return freight if the Goods are
returned.

Means the cargo suppiied by the Merchant and includes any Container not
supplied by or on behalf of the Carrier

Means the provisions of the International Convention for Unification of certain
Rules relating to Bills of Lading signed at Brussels on 25th August 1924,

Means the Hague Rules as amended by the Proiocol signed at Brussels on 23rd
February 1868,

Means the shipper, the consignee, the receiver of the Goods, the holder of this Bifl
of Lading, any person owning or entitled to the possession of the Goods or this Bill
of Lading, any person having a present of future interest in the Goods or any
person acting on behalf of any of the above mentioned persons.

(1} the Container when the Goods are shipped in a Container

(2) the skid or paliet when Goods are shipped on a skid or pallet and stuffed in 2
Container, and the Container is adjudged not to be the package for the purposes of
the Carner's limitation of liability

(3} the s«id or pallet when Goods are shipped on a skid or pallet but notin a
Container

(4) that shipping unit which cantains the greatest quantity of the Goods and to
which some packaging preparation for transportation has been made which
facilitates handling even though it does not canceal of completsly enclose the
Goods This clause does not apply to Goeds shipped in bulk, and it supersedes
any Inconsistent provision which may be printed, stamped or written elsewhere 1n
this Bill of Lading.

Means the ocean carrier and any other water, land or anr carrier invalved in the
Carnage of the Goods whether 1t be a Port to Port or a Combined Transport
movement.

Means an individual, a partnership, a body corporate or other entity.

Means when the port of loading and the port of discharge only are shown on the
face hereof and neither the place of acceptance nor the final destination are
stipulated on the face hereof

Means freight unit and the term “unit" as used in the Hague Rules and Hague-
Visby Rules,

Means filled, consolidated, packed, lcaded, or secured
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ORIGINAL

BEFORE THE
FEDERAL MARITIME COMMISSION WoIFR IS P g
QFEISE 6 e Fo ot
SHIPCO TRANSPORT INC.. PRATRAL IS
Complainant,
V. DOCKETNO. /2 -0k
JEM LOGISTICS, INC.,
and

ANDI GEORGESCU, an individual and
doing business as JEM LOGISTICS, INC.

Respondents.

B i i T i i e e i

ATTORNEY’S DECLARATION

I, Todd C. Fineberg. hereby states under penalty of perjury as follows:

I am co-counsel with Carlos Rodriguez in the above captioned Complaint matter
filed with the Federal Maritime Commission.

1 am admitted to practice law and am in good standing as an active member of
the bars of New York. the District of Columbia, and Maryland; and T am an inactive
member of the bars of California and Ohio. I am also an active member of the Bar of the
United States District Court for the Southern District of New York.

I do now and am prepared to conform to the standards of conduct set forth in the

American Bar Association’s Model Rules of Professional Conduct together with all



specific requirements contained in Rule 26 of the FMC Rules and 46 CFR §502, and all

FMC rules pertaining to attorney conduct.

The foregoing is stated and represented under penalty of perjury at Washington

roL
7//41 , ///%ﬁff
Todd C. Fineberg { /

D.C. on April 18,2012




